
  
 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, MARCH 20, 2012 
5:30 P.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 
TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 

     

5:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER  
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

March 5, 2012, Special Meeting (Intergovernmental Retreat) 
March 6, 2012, Regular Meeting 
March 6, 2012, Closed Session 

 1

 3  APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 20, 2012 AGENDA  15
5:35 4  SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

A. Award Request for Retiring Officer 
B. Request for Declaration of Surplus and Sale –  

WCSO K9  

SHERIFF HAGAMAN  
17 
21

5:40 5  BOARD OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS MS. LY MARZE 25
5:45 6  SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MATTERS 

A. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
Transferring the Division of Soil and Water 
Conservation to the Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Sciences from the Department of 
Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) 

B. Proposed Use of Bill Edmisten Memorial Fund 

MR. DENNY NORRIS 
MR. BRIAN CHATHAM 

 
31 

 
 
 
 

49
5:50 7  FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 
B. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Quarterly 

Financial Report 
C. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Audited 

Fiscal Monitoring Report 

MS. MARGARET PIERCE  
51 
53 

 
59

5:55 8  TOP ‘O BOONE ROAD MAINTENANCE PROPOSAL MR. JOE FURMAN 63
6:00 9  PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON A 

PROPOSED COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
(CDBG) SMALL CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM APPLICATION 
ON BEHALF OF THE HOSPITALITY HOUSE 

MR. JOE FURMAN 73



Page 2 
Tuesday, March 20, 2012 

Tentative Agenda & Meeting Notice 
Board of County Commissioners 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

7:00 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Proposed Proclamation Declaring May 14-19, 2012, as 

Community Pride Week 
B. Proposed State Highway Patrol Lease Renewal 
C. Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on 

Proposed Refinancing for the New High School 
D. Proposal for Lease of Parking Spaces at the Old High 

School 
E. Boards & Commissions 
F. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
79 

 
83 
93 

 
95 

 
97 

103
7:05 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  114
8:05 12  BREAK  114
8:10 13  CLOSED SESSION 

Attorney/Client Matters – G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 114

 8:30 14  ADJOURN  
  



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
March 5, 2012, Special Meeting (Intergovernmental Retreat) 
March 6, 2012, Regular Meeting 
March 6, 2012, Closed Session  
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
SPECIAL MEETING – INTERGOVERNMENTAL RETREAT 

MONDAY, MARCH 5, 2012 
 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners attended a special meeting on Monday, March 5, 
2012, in the 5th Floor Lobby of the Appalachian Athletic Center on the campus of Appalachian 
State University, Boone, NC.  The Intergovernmental Retreat agenda included presentations 
focused on Local Government Finance, the Watauga County Comprehensive Transportation 
Plan, and Coordinated Dispatch Services.  Those present were:  Chairman Miller, Vice-
Chairman Gable, Commissioner Deal, County Manager Geouque, and Clerk to the Board Fogle.  
Others present were as follows: 
 

• Appalachian State University Representatives:  Gunther Doerr, Jill Ehnenn, Lauren Estes, 
Greg Lovins, Susan McCracken, Seth Norris, and Cathy Ziegler. 

• Town of Beech Mountain Representatives:  Jennifer Broderick, Randy Feierabend, Alan 
Holcombe, and Rick Miller. 

• Town of Blowing Rock Representatives:  Eric Brown, Sharon Greene, Scott Hildebran, 
Thomas Klutz, Dan Phillips, Kevin Rothrock, Jim Steele, and Albert Yount. 

• Town of Boone Representatives:  Rennie Brantz, Blake Brown, Kim Brown, Loretta 
Clawson, Dana Crawford, Amy Davis, Jimmy Isaacs, Lynne Mason, Allan Scherlen, and 
Greg Young. 

• Town of Seven Devils Representatives:  David Ehmig, Ed Evans, Larry Fontaine, and Brad 
Lambert. 

• High Country Council of Governments Representatives:  Craig Hughes and Phil Trew. 
• Others:  Virginia Gable, wife of Vice-Chairman Gable, Madeleine Henley, NC League of 

Municipalities, and Anna Oakes, High Country Press. 
 

Mr. Phil Trew, High Country Council of Governments, called the joint meeting to order at 5:05 
P.M. by welcoming everyone and calling for introductions. 
 
After dinner was served, Mr. Trew introduced Ms. Madeleine Henley with the NC League of 
Municipalities who discussed projected revenue and expenditure items for local governments.  
The main points of Ms. Henley’s presentation included the following: 
 

Local Government Expenditures and Revenues 
• State income tax collections are ahead of projections. 
• Compared to taxable sales in 2008, sales were down $13 billion in 2010 and $10 billion 

in 2011. 
• Sales are rebounding except in construction-related activities. 
• County vehicle taxes are now tied to registration renewal, so collections should be 100% 

(compared to 85% in the past). 
• Final sales tax projections should be received by Towns by the end of March. 
• Workers Compensation – a combination of reduction in employment and steady claims 

was likely to result in raise in rates. 
• In 2014, provisions of the Affordable Healthcare Act will begin requiring employers with 

less than 50 employees to begin contributing to employee health insurance. 

032012 BCC Meeting

2



Mr. Trew introduced Mr. Craig Hughes with the High Country Council of Governments who 
gave an update on the Watauga County Comprehensive Transportation Plan process.  The main 
points of Mr. Hughes presentation included the following: 
 
Watauga County Comprehensive Transportation Plan (CTP) 

• Work on the CTP began in September 2010. 
• Goals and objectives have been developed and were approved by local governments in 

November 2011. 
• Population and employment growth projections have been developed and were approved 

by local governments in November 2011. 
• Watauga County’s population is expected to grow from 51,000 in 2010 to 81,000 in 

2040. 
• Bicycle, pedestrian, and transit elements of the CTP have been developed. 
• Recent meetings have focused on highway deficiencies and recommended alternatives to 

alleviate deficiencies. 
• Recommendations discussed to date have all come from previous planning documents 

(previous transportation plans, and comprehensive plans from Watauga County and the 
Towns). 

• Once recommendations are made, public workshops will be held. 
• Once the draft CTP is developed, it will be presented to local governments for adoption. 

 
Mr. Trew called upon Watauga County Vice-Chairman Gable and Watauga County Manager 
Deron Geouque to give an update on efforts to consolidate dispatching within the County.  The 
main points of their presentation included the following: 
 
Consolidated Dispatch 

• The US Department of Homeland Security and State 911 Board encourages consolidated 
dispatch. 

• Watauga County desires to have a consolidated dispatch system in operation under the 
direction of the County Manager via a newly organized County Department by July 1, 
2012. 

• The Town of Blowing Rock has adopted a resolution of interest to consolidate with 
Watauga County. 

• The Town of Seven Devils is currently dispatched through the County’s Sheriff’s Office. 
• The Town of Beech Mountain is currently dispatched through Avery County and serves 

as a back-up system for Watauga County. 
• Appalachian State University is not an E911 center and, therefore, all of their emergency 

calls are currently routed through the Town of Boone’s Police Department. 
• The proposed budget for a consolidated dispatch system was based on a split between the 

local governments based on the portion of 911 calls originating in each jurisdiction 
(County-46%, Boone-38%, Blowing Rock-16%). 

• Watauga County currently has adequate, existing hardware for the operation of a 
consolidated dispatch system. 

• Open discussion was held regarding consolidated dispatch services. 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

3



Mr. Trew stated that the date and time for the next Intergovernmental Retreat would be 
announced when scheduled. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 6:44 P.M. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

032012 BCC Meeting

4



MINUTES 
 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, MARCH 6, 2012 

 
 

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting on Tuesday, 
March 6, 2012, at 8:00 A.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
 
  PRESENT: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
    Vince Gable, Vice-Chairman 
    Jim Deal, Commissioner 
    Tim Futrelle, Commissioner 

Stacy C. Eggers, IV, County Attorney 
    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
[Commissioner Blust was not in attendance due to a prior commitment.] 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 8:01 A.M. 
 
Commissioner Deal opened the meeting with a prayer and Vice-Chairman Gable led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the February 21, 2012, regular and 
closed session minutes, and the February 24 & 25, 2012, special meeting minutes. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the February 21, 
2012, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

 
The Chairman tabled consideration of the February 21, 2012, closed session minutes until after 
closed session to allow for the review of proposed amendments. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the February 24 & 
25, 2012, special meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

DRAFT 
032012 BCC Meeting

5



APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the March 6, 2012, agenda. 
 
County Manager Geouque requested to add the following:  Blue Ridge Electric Membership 
Corporation (BREMCO) Utility Easement Request, prior to Item # 4, and Proposed Resolution 
for Negotiated Underwriting and Rate Modification for the New High School Loans, under 
Miscellaneous Administrative Matters. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the March 6, 
2012, agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

BLUE RIDGE ELECTRIC MEMBERSHIP CORPORATION (BREMCO) UTILITY 
EASEMENT REQUEST 
Mr. Kent Landholm with Blue Ridge Electric Membership Corporation (BREMCO) requested 
approval of a utility easement on County-owned property at the new high school location.  Mr. 
Landholm stated that the easement would allow for the installation of utilities for an internet 
network for the new high school provided by the State.  The new network offered a much higher 
capacity of service than was currently being used.  Mr. Landholm stated that all lines would be 
underground and would enter an already installed vault system off Old East King Street and then 
connect to the current conduit at the school. 
 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the easement for 
Blue Ridge Electric Membership Corporation for underground utilities to the new high school. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE OUT-OF-STATE TRAVEL REQUEST 
Captain Dee Dee Rominger with the Watauga County Sheriff’s Office requested permission for 
Detective Adam Lentz to attend, and drive a County vehicle to, a Child Forensic Interview 
Training in Huntsville, Alabama.  Per the Watauga County Personnel Ordinance, Board approval 
was required for all out-of-state travel. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the out-of-state 
travel request as presented by Captain Rominger. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

032012 BCC Meeting

6



HOSPITALITY HOUSE REQUEST TO APPLY FOR FUNDING OPPORTUNITY 
THROUGH THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SMALL 
CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM 
Ms. Lynne Mason, Executive Director of Hospitality House, requested the Board apply for a 
$250,000 grant through the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Catalyst 
Program on behalf of Hospitality House.  Ms. Mason stated that a house located next to 
Hospitality House’s family-oriented shelter, Rock Haven, was available for sale.  The house and 
the Rock Haven facility currently share a well and a septic system.    Ms. Mason shared that 
Rock Haven was currently serving several families and, being next door to one of their existing 
facilities, the purchase of the property for sale was an excellent opportunity to expand those 
services.   Hospitality House had the funding to cover operational costs; however, the grant was 
needed to acquire the property.   
 
Mr. Joe Furman, Watauga County Planning and Inspections Director, stated that the County 
would be the applicant, recipient, and administrator of the grant, if awarded.  Mr. Furman also 
reported that two public hearings were required prior to submission of the grant application and 
requested those public hearings be scheduled for March 20, and April 17, 2012.  Ms. Mason 
stated that Mr. Furman’s administrative time would be reimbursed by the Hospitality House. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
March 20, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. and a second public hearing on April 17, 2012, at 6:00 P.M. to 
allow citizen comment on the grant application and to authorize the Planning and Inspections 
Department to apply for the Community Development Block Grant Small Cities Catalyst 
Program grant on behalf of Hospitality House for the purchase of the property located adjacent to 
their Rock Haven facility. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR AQUATIC CENTER REPAIRS 
Mr. Robert Marsh presented the following bids for the repair of the County’s aquatic center: 
 

Name Pool 
Closure 

Admin 
Contract 

Total 
Contract 
Time Bid 

Base Bid Unit 
Price 1 

Unit 
Price 2 

Alternate 
1 

Boone Const. Co., Inc. 
Boone, NC  

5 
Weeks 

5 
Weeks 

10 
Weeks $59,955.00 $150.00 $200.00 No 

Change 
Greene Construction, Inc. 
Boone NC 

42 
Days 

49 
Days 

91 
Days $71,760.00 $136.00 

each 
$169.00 

each $3,000.00 

Statesville Building & 
Roofing Renovation  
Statesville NC 

21 
Calendar 

Days 

39 
Calendar 

Days 

60 
Calendar 

Days 
$99,915.00 $34.00 $175.00 $10,000.00 

Houck Contracting, LLC 
Hickory NC 

17 
Days 

50 
Days 

67 
Days $93,200.00 $180.00 $625.00 $3,000.00 

LaFaves Construction, Inc. 
Landis, NC  

49 
Days 

30 
Days 

79 
Days $66,450.00 $105.00 $800.00 $375.00 

032012 BCC Meeting

7



Name Pool 
Closure 

Admin 
Contract 

Total 
Contract 
Time Bid 

Base Bid Unit 
Price 1 

Unit 
Price 2 

Alternate 
1 

Dallas Lawrence Const. 
Boone NC 

21 
Days 

30 
Days 

51 
Days $52,843.22 $49.88 $676.85 $280.33 

Hickory Const. Co., Inc. 
Hickory NC 

30 
Days 

45 
Days 

75 
Days $91,200.00 $125.00 $1,000.00 $4,000.00 

MBI Builders, LLC 
North Wilkesboro, NC 

33 
Days 

42 
Days 

75 
Days $50,300.00 $55.00 $280.00 $400.00 

 

The repairs were deemed necessary as a result of a study conducted by Sutton-Kennerly & 
Associates that prioritized deficiencies and safety risks with the facility.  MBI was the low bidder 
in the amount of $50,300 with 33 days to complete the project.  The contract also contained a 
bonus provision for early completion.  Mr. Marsh, however, recommended the contract be 
awarded to Dallas Lawrence Construction, the next lowest bidder, in the amount of $52,843.22 
due to the bid including only 21 days to complete the project. 
 
County Attorney Eggers stated that both MBI Builders and Dallas Lawrence Construction 
submitted responsive and responsible bids which included days of completion within the 
acceptable time specified in the bid documents. Therefore, the Board was bound to either award 
the bid to the lowest bidder or reject all bids and re-advertise for bids.   
 
Mr. Marsh stated that an engineer would have to conduct a pre-bid meeting prior to re-
advertisement and, therefore, re-advertisement would take approximately 30 days and cost over 
$1,000, including the engineering fees. 
 
Commissioner Deal, Board representative on the Recreation Commission, stated that the 
Commission had also discussed the bids received and was concerned over the additional days of 
pool closure associated with the lowest bid. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Chairman Miller, moved to accept the lowest responsible 
and responsive bid from MBI Builders, LLC, in the amount of $50,300 and 33 days of pool 
closure. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

FIRE MARSHAL/EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution Adopting the 2010 Hazard Mitigation Plan 
Mr. Steve Sudderth, Fire Marshal/Emergency Management Coordinator, presented a proposed 
resolution adopting the Watauga County Hazard Mitigation Plan.  The Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) required local jurisdictions to prepare and adopt a hazard 
mitigation plan.  Failure to adopt such a plan precluded the eligibility of flood insurance and 
FEMA reimbursement for disasters.  The plan has been approved by FEMA, State Emergency 
Management, and the Towns of Beech Mountain, Blowing Rock, Boone, and Seven Devils. 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

8



Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

B.  Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) for VIPER Tower Grant for Green Hill 
Mr. Sudderth requested the Board accept a grant from the North Carolina Division of Emergency 
Management as a sub-grantee in the amount of $682,000 for a VIPER tower at the Green Hill 
site in Blowing Rock.  The Highway Patrol would administer the grant; however, a 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the County and the State of North Carolina, 
Department of Public Safety, Division of Emergency Management, and the Highway Patrol was 
required as part of the grant acceptance.  Mr. Sudderth stated that the County would be allowed 
to attach equipment to the tower if necessary. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to accept the grant award and 
approve the Memorandum of Understanding as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

TAX MATTERS  

A. Monthly Collections Report 
Tax Administrator Kelvin Byrd presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
February 2012.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 

B. Refunds and Releases 
Mr. Byrd presented the following Refunds and Releases for February 2012 for Board approval: 
 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 

Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for February 2012, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 
 

C.  Tax Lien Report 
Mr. Kelvin Byrd reviewed the Tax Lien Report and requested acceptance of the report listing 
delinquent tax bills that were liens on real property and authorization to advertise such liens. 

032012 BCC Meeting

9



 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to accept the Tax Lien Report 
and authorize the advertisement of liens as reported. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Resolution for Negotiated Underwriting and Rate Modification for the New 
High School Loans 

County Manager Geouque stated that, as discussed at the Annual Pre-Budget Retreat, the 
opportunity existed for the County to modify a current loan with BB&T for the new high school. 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, presented BB&T’s proposal.  BB&T was selected for 
refinancing due to the ability to waive a portion of the prepayment penalty and flexibility in the 
pay-off date.  Potential cost savings to the County would be approximately $2,000,000 to 
$4,000,000 over the term of the financing agreement.  Time was of the essence for the County to 
realize the potential savings and meet the financing schedule.  A future public hearing would be 
held prior to finalization of the rate modification.  Ms. Pierce also recommended the County 
engage Scott Leo, with Parker Poe, as bond counsel.  Ms. Pierce presented a proposed resolution 
which, upon adoption, would 1) appoint BB&T to serve as the book-running, senior manager for 
negotiated refunding of the existing high school loan; 2) designate a term of appointment; and 3) 
establish compensation rates of BB&TCM. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to adopt the resolution as 
presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to retain Mr. Scott Leo with 
Parker Poe as bond counsel for the new high school rate modification. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

B.  Update on the Mediation and Restorative Justice Center’s Grant Application 
County Manager Geouque stated that, at a previous Board meeting, a one-time allocation of 
$35,000 was made to continue the Watauga Drug Treatment Court program through the 
Mediation and Restorative Justice Center.  At a more recent Board meeting, Ms. Melissa 
Johnson, Executive Director of the Mediation and Restorative Justice Center, was given 

032012 BCC Meeting

10



authorization to submit a US Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, Bureau of 
Justice Assistance (BJA), pass-through grant application, contingent upon review by the County 
Attorney and Chairman Miller.  The total funding amount requested was $128,000 which would 
provide $64,000 per year, over a two-year term, and would allow Watauga County Drug 
Treatment Court to serve additional participants as well as enhance current services.  The Center 
requested to utilize the County’s ABC tax funds for the required 25% match.  If awarded, the 
grant funding would replace the $35,000 operational funding currently received from Watauga 
County, therefore alleviating the need to request funding for the next two fiscal years. 
 
The County Manger stated that notification of award for the BJA grant would not be known until 
August or September and, therefore, the remaining ABC funds, in the amount of approximately 
$11,690, that were not paid out due to the dissolution of New River Behavioral Healthcare, could 
be redirected to the Drug Treatment Court program to reduce the initial $35,000 allocation by the 
County.  Also, should the Board wish, the full $18,000 in ABC tax funds could be used as the 
match for the grant or used to carry out the program at a reduced level through Fiscal Year 2012-
13 while awaiting notification of the grant award. 
 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to allocate the remaining ABC 
tax funds, in the approximate amount of $11,690, to the Watauga Drug Treatment Court program 
reducing the County’s initial contribution from $35,000 to $23,370. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

C.  Proposed Emergency Services Director Job Description  
As directed by the Board, County Manager Geouque presented a proposed job description for the 
Emergency Services Director position.  The position would be classified as a Grade 19 on the 
County’s Pay and Classification Plan and have a minimum salary of $49,663, midpoint of 
$63,320, and maximum of $76,977.  The classification would place the position two levels above 
the Board of Elections Director and Veterans Services Officer and on the same level as the Parks 
and Recreation and Project on Aging Directors.  Commissioner Deal suggested adding to the job 
description that the position would be an ex-officio member of the Department’s Advisory 
Board. 
 
Vice-Chairman Gable, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to approve the job 
description with the inclusion that the position was to serve as an ex-officio member of the 
Department’s Advisory Board and to direct staff to advertise the position. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

D. Boards and Commissions 
County Manager Geouque stated that during the regular Blowing Rock Town Council meeting, 
held on February 14, Ms. Brenda Fairbetter was recommended to serve as the ETJ member of the 

032012 BCC Meeting

11



Blowing Rock Planning Board and Mr. Terry Story was recommended to serve as the ETJ 
member of the Blowing Rock Board of Adjustments. 
 
Chairman Miller directed staff to request information regarding Ms. Fairbetter and Mr. Story 
prior to taking action. 
 
County Manager Geouque stated that at their February 2012 meeting, the AppalCART Advisory 
Board recommended the following slate of officers be officially appointed/reappointed to their 
Board:  Mr. Jerry Moretz (at-large member); Mr. Greg Lovins (ASU representative); Ms. Angie 
Boitnotte (at-large member); Mr. David Blust (Board of Commissioners representative); Mr. 
Donald Ray (user representative); Mr. Barry Sauls (ASU representative); Mr. Andy Ball (Town 
of Boone representative); and Ms. Jeannine Taylor (Human Service Agency representative).  
Brief discussion was held regarding the issue that the AppalCART Board had sworn in Mr. Andy 
Ball who had not been officially appointed by the Board of Commissioners to date. 
 
The above are first readings; therefore, no action was required at this time. 

E.   Announcements 
County Manager Geouque made the following announcements:  
 

• Charter Communications has changed the day and time that they air the Watauga County 
Board of Commissioners meetings.  The Board meetings will now air on the Fridays, in 
the week the live meeting was held, at 7:00 P.M.  

 

• Appalachian State invited Commissioners along with School Board members, and Town 
Council members, to campus on May 7, 2012, from 9:00 A.M. to 2:00 P.M.  to provide 
an update on major activities taking place on campus such as construction projects, 
strategic priorities, and state funding and its impact on the campus and major initiatives 
involving the local community.  The day would consist of a tour, lunch, and meeting with 
University officials.  They would like for this to become an annual event.   

 

• The 2012 Watauga County Economic Development Summit is scheduled for Wednesday, 
March 7, 2012, from 1:00 to 5:00 P.M. at the Blowing Rock Art and History Museum in 
Downtown Blowing Rock. 

 

• An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 
scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board 
Room.  

 

• The Board is invited to attend the Cooperative Extension’s annual “Report to the People” 
luncheon which is scheduled for Tuesday, March 6, 2012, at the Watauga County 
Agricultural Conference Center at 11:45 A.M.  After enjoying a “local lunch,” a 
presentation on Watauga Extension’s highlights, accomplishments, and future goals will 
be given. 
 

• The Appalachian District Health Department invites the Board to attend a pre-event and 
event on Thursday, March 22, 2012, featuring a presentation regarding aerobic exercise 
and its relationship to the brain.  The event is sponsored through the “Communities 
Putting Prevention to Work” grant.  

032012 BCC Meeting

12



 

• The Humane Society has requested the Board set a date to tour their new facilities as 
recently constructed through a partnership with the County.  The County Manager 
requests the Board review their calendars and submit potential dates for a tour. 
 

By consensus, the Board agreed to tour the Humane Society facility April 23, 2012, from 
12:00 noon until 1:30 P.M. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
There was no public comment. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 9:01 A.M., Commissioner Deal, seconded by Commissioner Futrelle, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3). 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

 
Commissioner Deal, seconded by Vice-Chairman Gable, moved to resume the open meeting at 
9:39 A.M. 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

ACTION AFTER CLOSED SESSION 
Commissioner Futrelle, seconded by Commissioner Deal, moved to approve the February 21, 
2012, closed session minutes as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Miller, Gable, Deal, Futrelle) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Blust) 

ADJOURN 
Chairman Miller adjourned the meeting at 9:40 A.M. 
 
       ________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
ATTEST: 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

032012 BCC Meeting

13



Blank Page 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

14



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 20, 2012, AGENDA 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

15



Blank Page 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

16



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

A. Award Request for Retiring Officer 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Per G.S. 20-187.2, governing bodies of a law enforcement agency may award a retiring member 
their service side arm at a price determined by the governing body.  Law enforcement personnel 
may retire at age 55 with 5 years of credible service with full retirement benefits.  Sergeant 
Richard Aldridge will retire April 1, 2012.  The Sheriff’s Office requests that the respective side 
arm and badge be awarded to Officer Aldridge upon his retirement and that the Board set the 
price of the side arm at $1.   
 
Board action is required to make this award. 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

17



032012 BCC Meeting

18



032012 BCC Meeting

19



032012 BCC Meeting

20



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

SHERIFF’S OFFICE MATTERS 

B.  Request for Declaration of Surplus and Sale – WCSO K-9 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
The Sheriff will present a request to declare “Chesska” K-9 police dog as surplus and to sell it to 
its handler, Mr. Wes Hawkins.  The Sheriff has indicated that the dog is no longer of use to the 
Sheriff’s Office.  The Statute allows that the dog may be sold for a negotiated price by order of 
the Board of Commissioners.  In order for staff to carry out the order, the Board must adopt the 
enclosed resolution and advertise the sale for ten days prior to completion.  The Sheriff requests 
that the dog be declared surplus and sold for a fee of $1.00. 
 
Direction from the Board is requested. 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

21



032012 BCC Meeting

22



032012 BCC Meeting

23



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

Resolution Authorizing the Sale of Personal Property 
Worth Less Than $30,000 (G. S. 160A‐266; 267) 

 
 

WHEREAS, Watauga County owns certain items of personal property that have become 
surplus for its current needs; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the Watauga  County  Sheriff’s  Office  has  a  K‐9  named  Chesska  that  has 

reached the age and work life for a law enforcement K‐9; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A‐266 permits the county to sell such 

property  by  private  sale,  upon  authorization  by  the  Board  of  Commissioners  at  a  regular 
meeting and notice to the public; and 

 
WHEREAS,  the  Watauga  County  Board  of  Commissioners  is  convened  in  a  regular 

meeting. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED by  the Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

that: 
 

1.   The Board of Commissioners authorizes the County Manager to sell by private sale 
this K‐9 “Chesska” according to North Carolina General Statute 160A‐266, and make 
this  K‐9  available  to  Lieutenant  Hawkins, who will  be  responsible  for  all  further 
medical and housing expenses once K‐9 “Chesska” is retired. 

 
2.   The  Clerk  to  the  Board  of  Commissioners  shall  publish  a  notice  summarizing  this 

resolution, and no sale may be executed pursuant to this resolution until at least 10 
days after the day the notice is published. 

 
ADOPTED this the 20th day of March, 2012. 
 

 
 
              __________________________________ 
              Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
              Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
ATTEST: 
   
____________________________          (SEAL)   
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

DRAFT 

032012 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

BOARD OF EDUCATION REQUEST FOR LOTTERY FUNDS 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The School Board is requesting funds from the Education Lottery Fund.  The funds are to be 
used for various Capital Improvement Projects.  The projects proposed are the four which were 
discussed at the annual retreat for which the School Board was requesting a $100,000 match 
from the County.  The School Board is now proposing to use their fund balance to pay the local 
match and therefore requesting no funds from the County. 
 
Board approval is required to disburse and approve the requested funding. 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

25



032012 BCC Meeting

26



032012 BCC Meeting

27



032012 BCC Meeting

28



032012 BCC Meeting

29



Blank Page 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

30



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MATTERS 

A. Proposed Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Transferring the Division of Soil and 
Water Conservation to the Department of Agriculture and Consumer Sciences from the 
Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR)  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Due to recent legislative changes, the Division of Soil and Water Conservation was moved from 
the Department of Environment and Natural Resources to the Department of Agriculture and 
Consumer Sciences.  The amendment requires the Memorandum of Understanding to reflect the 
new reporting change. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve, contingent upon County Attorney review, the new 
Memorandum of Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture Natural 
Resources Conservation Service; the North Carolina Department of Agriculture and Consumer 
Services – Division of Soil and Water Conservation; the Watauga Soil and Water Conservation 
District; and Watauga County. 
 
Board action is requested. 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

31



032012 BCC Meeting

32



032012 BCC Meeting

33



032012 BCC Meeting

34



032012 BCC Meeting

35



032012 BCC Meeting

36



032012 BCC Meeting

37



032012 BCC Meeting

38



032012 BCC Meeting

39



032012 BCC Meeting

40



032012 BCC Meeting

41



032012 BCC Meeting

42



032012 BCC Meeting

43



032012 BCC Meeting

44



032012 BCC Meeting

45



032012 BCC Meeting

46



032012 BCC Meeting

47



032012 BCC Meeting

48



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT MATTERS 

B.  Proposed Use of Bill Edmisten Memorial Fund 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
In January of 2003, Mr. Doug Clawson, representing the Watauga County Agricultural Advisory 
Board, recommended establishing a memorial fund honoring Mr. Bill Edmisten.  The fund was 
to be used to further farmland preservation and would be administered by the Watauga County 
Agricultural Advisory Board. 
 
The Watauga Soil and Water and the Farmland Preservation Advisory Board are requesting the 
memorial funds be used for Watauga County students to attend workshops and training sessions 
related to natural resources and other relevant courses. 
 
Board action is requested to allow funds from the Bill Edmisten Memorial to be used for 
Watauga students to attend workshop and training sessions related to natural resources. 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

49



032012 BCC Meeting

50



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

A. Budget Amendments 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will review budget amendments as included in your 
packet. 
 
Board approval is requested. 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

51



 

 

                  W A T A U G A   C O U N T Y 
                               FINANCE OFFICE 

814 West King St., Room 216 - Boone, NC  28607 - Phone (828) 265-8007  Fax (828) 265-8006 

         

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO:   Deron Geouque, County Manager 

FROM: Margaret Pierce, Finance Director 

SUBJECT: Budget Amendments-FY 2011/12 

DATE:  March 20, 2012 

 

The following budget amendments require approval of the Watauga County Board of 

Commissioners. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

663740-381000  Sale of Recycled Scrap    $15,000 

667420-433000  Utilities-Electricity   $15,000 

 

To recognize additional revenue from sales of recycled scrap and additional expenditures for 

electricity in the Solid Waste Fund. Additional expenditures are due to the delay in the Gas to 

Energy Project reaching full capacity from original projected date of fall 2011. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

143531-323000  Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $7,500 

145310-469101  DSS Prof Services-Legal Fees $7,500 

 

To recognize additional state reimbursements for legal fees. 

 

Account#   Description    Debit  Credit 

 

143531-323000  Administrative Cost Reimbursements  $19,000 

145410-440002  Low Income Home Energy Asst. $19,000 

 

To recognize increase in funding allocation from the state for energy program funds. 

 

 

032012 BCC Meeting

52



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

B. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Quarterly Financial Report 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Margaret Pierce, Finance Director, will present the Smoky Mountain Center Quarterly 
Report as required by State Statute. 
 
No action is required. 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

53



032012 BCC Meeting

54



032012 BCC Meeting

55



032012 BCC Meeting

56



032012 BCC Meeting

57



Blank Page 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

58



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

FINANCE MATTERS 

C. Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center’s Audited Fiscal Monitoring Report 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Included for your review are the financial monitoring reports for the Smoky Mountain Center for 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011, as required by General Statute. 
 
No action is required. 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

59



032012 BCC Meeting

60



032012 BCC Meeting

61



032012 BCC Meeting

62



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

TOP ‘O BOONE ROAD MAINTENANCE REQUEST 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Top O’ Boone subdivision has provided a new proposal requesting each lot owner pay a one-
time $100 fee for gate construction in addition to the $50 annual road maintenance fee.  
Homeowners are also being requested to pay a one-time $200 fee for gate construction in 
addition to the $150 annual road maintenance fee.  The County currently owns a lot on which 
two emergency communications towers are located.  The subdivision is requesting the County 
contribute the one-time fee of $350 and $150 each year thereafter for road maintenance due to 
the communication towers. 
 
The subdivision has an informal road maintenance agreement in which two thirds of the property 
owners are participating as stated by Mr. Rowe.  No funds are budgeted for this expense and 
approval of this request would require an allocation from the administrative contingency fund.  
The Board may wish to exercise caution as this has the potential to set a precedent for future 
requests for assistance. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

63



032012 BCC Meeting

64



032012 BCC Meeting

65



032012 BCC Meeting

66



032012 BCC Meeting

67



032012 BCC Meeting

68



032012 BCC Meeting

69



032012 BCC Meeting

70



032012 BCC Meeting

71



Blank Page 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

72



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW CITIZEN COMMENT ON A PROPOSED COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT (CDBG) SMALL CITIES CATALYST PROGRAM 
APPLICATION ON BEHALF OF THE HOSPITALITY HOUSE 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:  
 
Per Board direction, a public hearing has been set to seek public comment on the County’s 
potential application for $250,000 through the Community Development Block Grant Small 
Cities Catalyst Program on behalf of the Hospitality House with Joe Furman providing 
assistance. 
 
An additional public hearing will be scheduled for April 17, 2012, as required by the grant 
program. 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

73



032012 BCC Meeting

74



032012 BCC Meeting

75



032012 BCC Meeting

76



032012 BCC Meeting

77



032012 BCC Meeting

78



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

A.  Proposed Proclamation Declaring May 14-19, 2012, as Community Pride Week 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS:   
 
Staff will request the Board adopt the proposed proclamation declaring the week of May 14-19, 
2012, as Community Pride Week in Watauga County.  This event is conducted every year by 
Sanitation staff and has proved to be very popular with the County's citizens. 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

79



 
Memo 
To: Deron Geouque 

CC: JV Potter, Donna Watson 

From: Lisa Doty, Recycling Manger 

Date: 3/15/2012 

Re: Community Pride Proclamation 

 

Attached is the “Community Pride Proclamation” for the Commissioners to sign.  We will hold 
Community Pride Week from Monday, May 14 – Saturday, May 19.  Household Hazardous Waste 
Day will take place on Saturday, May 19 from 9 a.m. to 2 p.m. at the Sanitation Department in 
conjunction with the NC Department of Agriculture, the County Maintenance Department and the 
Town of Boone.  We also will hold the prescription and over-the counter drug take-back on 
Saturday, May 19 at locations throughout the county (time and locations to be determined.) in 
conjunction with the Watauga County Sheriff’s Department.   
 
These events will be advertised at all the County Convenience Centers, on the County website 
and through the media and other outlets.  
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.  Thank you!   
 

 

Watauga County 
Recycling Office 
828-265-4852 

032012 BCC Meeting

80



 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

COMMUNITY PRIDE WEEK PROCLAMATION 
May 14 – 19, 2012 

 
WHEREAS, Watauga County is the beneficiary of an abundance of natural resources, including 

clean air and water, some of the oldest, most scenic mountains in the world, cascading 
waterfalls, wildlife, pristine rivers and streams, rolling hills and pastureland; and 

 
WHEREAS, working together to protect and conserve these natural resources is essential to the 

continued quality of life for the residents of the County; and  
 
WHEREAS, the May 2012 observance of Community Pride Week provides a unique opportunity 

for individuals and groups to promote and raise awareness of environmental 
stewardship by setting goals and taking actions to lessen the negative impact on the 
environment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the goal of Community Pride Week is to improve the appearance and character of 

Watauga County by removing litter and other debris from roadways, waterways and 
public and private lands; and 

 
WHEREAS, residents will be allowed to dispose of brush, metal, furniture, appliances, tires, 

rocks, cement, cement blocks and asphalt at the Watauga County Landfill May 14 - 19 
and dispose of household hazardous waste and over-the-counter and prescription 
medications on May 19 for no charge.  (This does not apply to commercial haulers or 
businesses.) 

  
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED, by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners that 

May 14 - 19, 2012, be declared COMMUNITY PRIDE WEEK throughout the County and 
encourage all County residents to work together to ensure the preservation of our 
natural resources now and for future generations. 

 
ADOPTED this the 20th day of March, 2012. 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 

DRAFT 
032012 BCC Meeting

81



Blank Page 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

82



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

B.  Proposed State Highway Patrol Lease Renewal  
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The current lease for office space with the North Carolina Highway Patrol at the Law 
Enforcement is set to expire April 1, 2012.  The requested renewal is for $12.49 per square foot 
for a period of five years.  The space requested is 365 square feet. 
 
Board action is requested to approve the renewal of the lease at $12.50 per square foot for a five-
year term 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

83



THIS LEASE DOES NOT BECOME EFFECTIVE UNTIL EXECUTED BY THE 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

 
 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this the______day of 
__________________________________, 2012, by and between County of 
Watauga, hereinafter designated as Lessor, and the North Carolina Department 
of Public Safety, State Highway Patrol hereinafter designated at Lessee; 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 THAT WHEREAS, authority to approve and execute this lease agreement 
was delegated to the Department of Administration by resolution adopted by the 
Governor and Council of State on the 1st day of September, 1981; and as 
amended on November 7, 1984; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Department of Administration has delegated to this State 
agency the authority to execute this lease agreement by a memorandum dated 
the 11th day of March, 2003; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the parties hereto have mutually agreed to the terms of this 
lease agreement as hereinafter set out, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the rental hereinafter agreed to be 
paid and the terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, Lessor does hereby let 
and lease unto Lessee and Lessee hereby takes and leases from Lessor for and 
during the period of time and subject to the terms and conditions hereinafter set 
out certain space in Town of Boone, County of Watauga, North Carolina, more 
particularly described as follows: 
 
Being +/- 365 square feet of office located at Watauga County Law Enforcement 
Center, 184 Hodges Gap Road, Boone, Watauga County, North Carolina. 
  

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY-NC STATE HIGHWAY PATROL 
 
 CONDITIONS OF THIS LEASE AGREEMENT ARE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
 1.  The term of this lease shall be for a period of three (3) years 
commencing on the 1st day of April, 2012, or as soon thereafter as the leased 
premises are ceded to the Lessee and terminating on the 31st  day of March,  
2015.   
 
 2.  The Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rental for said premises the sum of 
$4,560.00 Dollars per annum, which sum shall be paid in equal monthly 
installments of $380.00 Dollars, said rental to be payable within fifteen (15) days 
from receipt of invoice.   
 

032012 BCC Meeting

84



   The Lessee agrees to pay the aforesaid rental to Lessor at the address 
specified, or, to such other address as the Lessor may designate by a notice in 
writing at least fifteen (15) days prior to the due date. 
 
 
 3.  Lessor agrees to furnish to the Lessee, as a part of the consideration for 
this lease, the following services and utilities to the satisfaction of the Lessee.   
 
 A Heating facilities, air conditioning facilities, adequate electrical  

facilities, adequate lighting fixtures and sockets, hot and cold water 
facilities, and adequate toilet facilities.  

 
B. Janitorial services and cleaning services and supplies.  This shall 

include maintenance of lawns, sidewalks, paved areas (this includes 
snow removal) and disposal of trash. 

 
C. All utilities, except telephone. 

 
D. Lessor to provide required fire extinguishers and servicing, and 

pest control, and outside trash disposal including provision for the 
handling of recyclable items such as aluminum cans, cardboard and 
paper. 

 
E. Elevator Service, if applicable 

 
F. Parking 

 
G. The leased premises are generally accessible to persons with disabilities.  

This shall include access into the premises from the parking areas (where 
applicable), into the premises via any common areas of the building and 
access to an accessible restroom. 
 

 H.        All fire/safety inspections fees and storm water fees shall be paid  
              by Lessor. 

 
I. The number of keys to be provided to State for each lockset shall be  

 reasonably determined by the State prior to occupancy, at no cost to  
 the State.  

 
 
 4.  During the lease term, the Lessor shall keep the leased premises in 
good repair and tenantable condition, to the end that all facilities are kept in an 
operative condition.  Maintenance shall include, but is not limited to furnishing 
and replacing electrical light fixture ballasts, air conditioning and ventilating 
equipment filter pads, if applicable, and broken glass.  In case Lessor shall, after 
notice in writing from the Lessee in regard to a specified condition, fail, refuse, or 
neglect to correct said condition, or in the event of an emergency constituting a 
hazard to the health or safety of the Lessee's employees, property, or invitees, it 
shall then be lawful for the Lessee in addition to any other remedy the Lessee 
may have, to make such repair at its own cost and to deduct the amount thereof 
from the rent that may then be thereafter become due hereunder.  The Lessor 

032012 BCC Meeting

85



reserves the right to enter and inspect the leased premises, at reasonable times, 
and to make necessary repairs to the premises. 
 
 5.  It is understood and agreed that Lessor shall, at the beginning of said 
lease term as herein above set forth, have the leased premises in a condition 
satisfactory to Lessee, including repairs, painting, partitioning, remodeling, 
plumbing and electrical wiring suitable for the purposes for which the leased 
premises will be used by Lessee. 
 
 6.  The Lessee shall have the right during the existence of this lease, with 
the Lessor's prior consent, to make alterations, attach fixtures and equipment, 
and erect additions, structures or signs in or upon the leased premises. Such 
fixtures, additions, structures or signs so placed in or upon or attached to the 
leased premises under this lease or any prior lease of which this lease is an 
extension or renewal shall be and remain the property of the Lessee and may be 
removed there from by the Lessee prior to the termination of this lease or any 
renewal or extension thereof, or within a reasonable time thereafter.  The Lessee 
shall have no duty to remove any improvement or fixture placed by it on the 
premises or to restore any portion of the premises altered by it.  In the event 
Lessee elects to remove his improvements or fixtures and such removal causes 
damage or injury to the demised premises, Lessee will repair only to the extent 
of any such damage or injury. 
 
 
 7.  If the said premises be destroyed by fire or other casualty without fault 
of the Lessee, this lease shall immediately terminate and the rent shall be 
apportioned to the time of the damage. In case of partial destruction or damage 
by fire or other casualty without fault of the Lessee, so as to render the premises 
untenantable in whole or in part, there shall be an apportionment of the rent 
until the damage has been repaired.  During such period of repair, Lessee shall 
have the right to obtain similar office space at the expense of Lessee or the Lessee 
may terminate the lease by giving fifteen (15) days written notice to the Lessor. 
 
 8.  Lessor shall be liable to Lessee for any loss or damages suffered by 
Lessee which are a direct result of the failure of Lessor to perform an act required 
by this lease, and provided that Lessor could reasonably have complied with 
said requirement. 
 
 9.  Upon termination of this lease, the Lessee will peaceably surrender the 
leased premises in as good order and condition as when received, reasonable use 
and wear and damage by fire, war, riots, insurrection, public calamity, by the 
elements, by act of God, or by circumstances over which Lessee had no control or 
for which Lessor is responsible pursuant to this lease, excepted.  
 
 10.  The Lessor agrees that the Lessee, upon keeping and performing the 
covenants and agreements herein contained, shall at all times during the 
existence of this lease peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the leased 
premises free from the adverse claims of any person. 
 
 11.  The failure of either party to insist in any instance upon strict 
performance of any of the terms and conditions herein set forth shall not be 
construed as a waiver of the same in any other instance.  No modification of any 
provision hereof and no cancellation or surrender thereof shall be valid unless in 
writing and signed and agreed to by both parties. 

032012 BCC Meeting

86



 
 12.  Any hold over after the expiration of the said term or any extension 
thereof, shall be construed to be a tenancy from month to month, and shall 
otherwise be on the terms and conditions herein specified, so far as applicable; 
however, either party shall give not less than sixty (60) days written notice to 
terminate the tenancy. 
 
 13.  The parties to this lease agree and understand that the continuation of 
this lease agreement for the term period set forth herein, or any extension or 
renewal thereof, is dependent upon and subject to the appropriation, allocation 
or availability of funds for this purpose to the agency of the Lessee responsible 
for payment of said rental.  The parties to this lease also agree that in the event 
the agency of the Lessee or that body responsible for the appropriations of said 
funds, in its sole discretion, determines, in view of its total local office operations 
that available funding for the payment of rents are insufficient to continue the 
operation of its local offices on the premise leased herein, it may choose to 
terminate the lease agreement set forth herein by giving Lessor written notice of 
said termination, and the lease agreement shall terminate immediately without 
any further liability to Lessee.  
 
 14.  All notices herein provided to be given, or which may be given by 
either party to the other, shall be deemed to have been fully given when made in 
writing and deposited in the United States mail, certified and postage prepaid 
and addressed as follows: To the Lessor at: Watauga County Manager’s Office, 
814 West King Street, Suite 205, Boone, NC  28607, and the Lessee at: 4701 Mail 
Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina, 27699-4701. Nothing herein contained 
shall preclude the giving of such notice by personal service. The address to 
which notices shall be mailed as aforesaid to either party may be changed by 
written notice. 
 
 
“N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any 
State Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person 
seeking to do business with the State.  By execution of this lease, Lessee attests, for the 
entire organization and its employees or agents, that you it is not aware that any such gift 
has been offered, accepted, or promised by any employees of your organization.” 

032012 BCC Meeting

87



 
 
 IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, this lease has been executed by the parties 
hereto, in duplicate originals, as of the date first above written. 
 
 
LESSEE: 
 
BY: ___________________________________ 
      Colonel Michael Gilchrist 
      Commander of NC State Highway Patrol 
       Department of Public Safety 
 
 
BY: ______________________________________ 
        Marvin Melvin 
        Fiscal Controller 
        Department of Public Safety 
 
 
BY: _______________________________________ 
        Reuben F. Young 
        Secretary 
        Department of Public Safety    
   
 
 
LESSOR:  

 
Watauga County 
 
BY:  _________________________________ 
 
TITLE:  __________________________ 
 
DATE:  __________________________ 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

88



STATE OF NORTH  CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ___________________ 
 

 I, _________________________________, a Notary Public in and for the 

County of __________________ and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that 

_____________________________, personally appeared before me this date and 

acknowledged the due execution by her of the foregoing instrument as for the 

purposes therein expressed. 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the _____ day of 

__________________________, 2012. 

 
 
 
       _________________________  
                                                                                              Notary Public 
 
       ___________________________ 
       Print Name 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
_____________________ 

032012 BCC Meeting

89



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ________________ 
 
 

 I,___________________________________, a Notary Public in and for the 

County and State aforesaid, do hereby certify that SECRETARY REUBEN F. 

YOUNG personally came before me this day and acknowledged the due 

execution by him of the foregoing instrument as Secretary of the Department of  

Public Safety of the State of North Carolina for the purpose therein expressed. 

 WITNESS my hand and Notarial Seal, this the _________ day of 

________________________, 2012. 

  
       
      ______________________________ 
                              Notary Public 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Print Name 
 
My Commission Expires: 
 
______________________   
  
  

032012 BCC Meeting

90



 1 

 
THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA SHALL NOT BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY EXPENSES INCURRED BY THE PROPOSER 
IN THE PREPARATION OF THIS PROPOSAL.  THE STATE RESERVES THE RIGHT TO REJECT ANY PROPOSAL FOR ANY 

REASON IT DEEMS WARRANTED.   FAXED OR E-MAILED PROPOSALS ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE. 
PROPOSAL TO LEASE TO THE STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA   - PO-28 

1.  NAME OF LESSOR: 
County of Watauga 

2.  LESSOR’S AGENT:                          , County Manager  

INDICATE EACH LESSOR’S BUSINESS CLASSIFICATION AS APPLICABLE:  ___A.  PROPRIETORSHIP ______B.  
PARTNERSHIP ____C.  CORPORATION ___X__D.  GOVERNMENTAL ____E.  NON-PROFIT ____F. *** (HUB) HISTORICALLY 
UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES ____G.  OTHER:__________            TAX I.D. # __________________________ 
MAILING ADDRESS:   814 West King Street, Suite 205 MAILING ADDRESS 
CITY:   Boone                         ZIP:  28607                           CITY:                                ZIP: 
PHONE#:    ()             FAX#:  ()                             PHONE#:                          FAX#: 
E-MAIL: E-MAIL: 
3.  SPACE LOCATION:(including building name, floors involved & suite or room numbers unless entire floor) 
Watauga County Law Enforcement Center 
STREET ADDRESS                                              CITY                              COUNTY         ZIP CODE 
184 Hodges Gap Road                                      Boone                                Watauga                28607 
4.  ATTACH FLOOR PLAN TO SCALE SHOWING THE SIZE AND LAYOUT OF SPACE OFFERED) 
5.  GROSS SQUARE FOOTAGE BEFORE 
NET USAGE COMPUTED 

A.  OFFICE      
1085 SF 

B.  WAREHOUSE       N/A            C.  OTHER  N/A 

6.  All proposals must be submitted on the basis of net square footage as defined on reverse side of this sheet and in 
Specifications  (PO-27) 
A.  DESIRED PROPOSAL (See PO-27 Items VI and XII-A) 

TYPE OF SPACE 

TOTAL 
NET SQ. 

FT. 
ANNUAL 
RENTAL 

ANNUAL 
RENT 

PER SQ. FT. UTILITIES 
JANITOR. 
SERVICES 

WATER / 
SEWER 

REQUIRED 
PARKING 
SPACES 

OFFICE 365 $4,560.00 $12.49 YES YES YES  
WAREHOUSE        
OTHER        
TOTALS   XXXX XXXX   XXXX 
Lessor agrees to provide all parking spaces as set forth in the specifications (PO 27 Item VI –Parking)at no additional cost to the 
State.  (Please clearly explain any variance in number, type or location in Comments or Additional Information below or on a 
separate, attached sheet). 
Comments: 

ERRORS BY PROPOSERS IN CALCULATING NET SQUARE FOOTAGE WILL REDUCE THE ANNUAL RENTAL WITHOUT 
CHANGING THE PROPOSED RATE PER SQUARE FOOT IN THE PROPOSAL 

 
B.  OPTIONAL ALTERNATE PROPOSAL NO. 1 (See PO-27 ITEMS VI AND XII-B) 

(FOR PROPOSALS NOT INCLUDINING UTILITIES AND/OR JANITORIAL SERVICES) 
 

TYPE OF SPACE 

TOTAL 
NET SQ. 

FT. 
ANNUAL 
RENTAL 

ANNUAL 
RENT 

PER SQ. FT. UTILITIES 
JANITOR. 
SERVICES 

WATER / 
SEWER 

REQUIRED 
PARKING 
SPACES 

OFFICE        
WAREHOUSE        
OTHER        
TOTALS   XXXX XXXX   XXXX 
Lessor agrees to provide all parking spaces as set forth in the specifications (PO 27 Item VI-Parking) at no additional cost to the 
State.  (Please clearly explain any variance in number, type or location in Comments or Additional Information below or on a 
separate, attached sheet).   
Comments: 

7.  LEASE TERM :     ___3 Years________YEARS      BEGINNING DATE:__4-1-2012___________________ 
8.  RENEWAL OPTIONS, IF ANY:  TERMS AND CONDITIONS:     
 
 
NOTE:  RATES THAT INCLUDE INDETERMINABLE PERCENTAGE INCREASES, SUCH AS UNCAPPED CPI INCREASES 
ETC., ARE NOT ACCEPTABLE DURING EITHER THE INITIAL TERM OR ANY RENEWAL PERIOD(S) 
 
The State of North Carolina supports the use of products and materials having recycled content in renovation and 
construction.  The proposed building must have facilities for handling materials to be recycled such as plastics, 
aluminum, waste paper and cardboard. 
 
THE PROPOSED BUILDING MUST BE COMPLETELY FREE OF ANY HAZARDOUS ASBESTOS OR HAZARDOUS LEAD 
PAINT THROUGHOUT THE STATE’S TENANCY. 
Is the proposed building free of hazardous 
asbestos? 

YES _____X_______ NO__________________ 

Is the proposed building free of hazardous lead 
paint? 

YES ____X________ NO__________________ 

DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:   
CITY SQUARE FEET:  AGENT:  
CUT-OFF FOR RECEIVING PROPOSALS IS 4:00 PM       DATE:  

032012 BCC Meeting

91



 2 

 
 LESSOR: 

9.  ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  
 
 
 
 
 
10.  Does this space comply with local and State Building safety and zoning codes specifically including OSHA provisions for the 
handicapped and applicable sections of the State Building Code Volumes I-V? 
______X__________YES _________________NO  ______________PARTIALLY 
EXPLAIN IF OTHER THAN “YES” IS CHECKED ABOVE: 
 
 
 
 
 
11.  This proposal is made in compliance with the specifications furnished by the Department of  
___________________.  I realize that the State reserves the right to reject this proposal for any reason it deems warranted.  This 
proposal is good until___________________________.  I ACKNOWLEDGE AND FURTHER AFFIRM THAT I am aware of and 
familiar with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 United States Code, Section 12101 et seq.) and if the above firm is 
awarded the contract, it will comply with the provisions of said Act. 
 
I am aware that annual per square foot rental rate(s) which include indeterminable percentage increase(s) such as uncapped 
Consumer Price Index increases etc., are not acceptable during either the initial term or any renewal period(s): 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
***(HUB) HISTORICALLY UNDERUTILIZED BUSINESSES (HUB) CONSIST OF  MINORITY, WOMEN AND DISABLED 
BUSINESS FIRMS THAT ARE AT LEAST FIFTY-ONE PERCENT OWNED AND OPERATED BY AN INDIVIDUAL(S) OF THE 
AFOREMENTIONED CATEGORIES.  ALSO INCLUDED IN THIS CATEGORY ARE DISABLED BUSINESS ENTERPRISES AND 
NON-PROFIT WORK CENTERS FOR THE BLIND AND SEVERELY DISABLED. 
 
N.C.G.S. § 133-32 and Executive Order 24 prohibit the offer to, or acceptance by, any  State 
Employee of any gift from anyone with a contract with the State, or from any person seeking to do 
business with the State.  By execution of this proposal, you attest, for your entire organization and 
its employees or agents, that you are not aware that any such gift has been offered, accepted, or 
promised by any employees of your organization. 
 
_________________________________________ 
Printed Name of Lessor 
 
_________________________________________        _______________________ 
Signature of Lessor                                                          Date 

MAILING /DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS 

To be considered this proposal must be received by the State Property Office prior to 4:00 PM on the cutoff.  No faxed or  
e-mailed proposals will be accepted. PHONE: 919-807-4650 
Delivery Address If Delivered In Person:  Director, State Property Office, Room 4055, Administration Building, 116 West Jones 
Street, Raleigh, North Carolina 
Mailing Address If Sent Through Mail Service:  State Property Office, 1321 Mail Service Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-
1321 

ENVELOPE SHOULD BE MARKED: 
(a) Lease proposal Enclosed   
(b) Cutoff Date for Receiving Proposals  
(c) Name of State Agency involved. 

 
NOTE:  Net square footage is a term meaning the area to be leased for occupancy by State Personnel and/or equipment.  To 
determine net square footage: 
1.  Compute the inside area of the space by measuring from the normal inside finish of exterior walls or the roomside finish of fixed 
corridor and shaft walls, or the center of tenant separating partitions. 
2.  Deduct from the Inside area the following: 
     *a.  Toilets and lounges 
     *b.  Entrance and elevator lobbies 
     *c.  Corridors 
      d.  Stairwells 
      e.  Elevators and escalator shafts 
       f.  Building equipment and service areas 
       g.  Stacks, shafts, and interior columns 

h.    Other space not usable for State purposes 
 
*Deduct if space is not for exclusive use by the State.   Multiple State leases require a, b, and c to be deducted.  The State Property 
Office may make adjustments for areas deemed excessive for State use. 
DEPARTMENT:  DIVISION:   
CITY:  SQUARE FEET:       AGENT:  
CUT-OFF FOR RECEIVING PROPOSALS IS 4:00 PM       DATE:  
FORM (PO-28)                                                                                                                                  (11/2009)      

032012 BCC Meeting

92



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

C.  Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Refinancing for the New 
High School  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
As part of the refinancing of the high school debt, a public hearing is required to allow citizen 
comment.  Upon closing of the public hearing, the Board will be asked to adopt a resolution 
which authorizes the financing and other relevant matters pertaining to the financing. A tentative 
schedule of the proposed refinancing has been included. 
 
Staff is requesting the Board set a public hearing for April 17, 2012, at 6:00 PM to allow citizen 
comment on the proposed refinancing of the high school debt. 
 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

93



 

032012 BCC Meeting

94



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

D.  Proposal for Lease of Parking Spaces at the Old High School 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The Art of Living Foundation International Center for Meditation and Well Being is requesting 
to rent the parking lot at the Old High School.  The Center will have a grand inauguration of its 
new facility on June 29, 2012. 
 
The Center identified the Old High School as a viable off-site parking facility due to its 
proximity to the Center.  The plan is to have parking begin on June 28th and end the morning of 
July 4th. 
 
The Center proposes that their members/volunteers be on site at the lot from the afternoon into 
the evening of June 28th and again on Wednesday July 4th.  The gates will be closed during the 
rental days between June 28th and the morning of July 4th.  
 
The proposal is to lease the parking space at the Old High School for $300 a day for a total of 
$1,800. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

95



From: Bonnie Rosen [mailto:bonnie.rosen@artofliving.org]  
Sent: Monday, March 05, 2012 4:22 PM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: Proposal for Lease of Parking Spaces at the Old High School on Highway 105 JUne 28 - morning of July 4th 
Importance: High 
 
Hello Deron,  
 
As a follow-up to our phone conversation late last week, I am forwarding for your review and presentation to the 
County Board a proposal regarding rental of parking space at the Old High School Building on Route 105.  
 
The International Center for Meditation and Well Being  - a 501c3 non-profit organization , recently purchased a 
world class retreat facility, located on a 381 acre mountaintop in Boone, NC. 
The center will soon be offering a variety of Holistic programs for all ages that include yoga, meditation, 
accompanied by self-development programs, corporate retreats, youth leadership development, summer camps for 
family and children as well as specialized programs for returning veterans.  
 
A grand inauguration of the facility is planned on June 29th 2012.    Simultaneously from June 28th evening- July 04 
AM,  a variety of  holistic programs catered to adults, youth, children will be offered at the Center.  
This will culminate with a grand celebration on July 03rd and then participants will begin leaving that evening and on 
the morning of July 4th.  
 
Currently there is limited parking at the International Center for Meditation and Well Being and thus our request to 
rent space at the Old School building.   
 
To accommodate our visitors we anticipate the following parking needs at an off-site parking  location:  
1.   800  parking spaces on June 28th, June 29th, June 30th, July 1st and July 2nd. 
2.   2000  parking spaces on July 03rd. 
 
We have identified the Old High School  as a very viable off-site parking facility due to its proximity to the 
Center.  Additionally, with the available 400-500 parking spots at the Old School, we would plan to have parking 
begin on June 28th, without much “in and out” traffic until the end of our session which is morning of July 4trh.   
 

1) We propose that we could have our members/volunteers on sight at the lot the afternoon into evening of 
June 28th.  And again on Wednesday July 4th so that the location gates could be opened and then closed 
leaving no worries for your County staff.  We would have the gates closed during the rental  days between 
June 28th and morning of July 4th. That is our plan at this time.  We want to keep it simple and make it easy 
for any concerns you might have due to the gated environment.  
 

2) We propose leasing the parking space at the Old High School and wish to offer $300 a day.  
Please consider this as a proposal for leasing parking  spaces  forward it to appropriate authorities for 
approval.  (I assume this would be at the next County Board Meeting scheduled on 3/20.  However,  we are 
open to hearing sooner so that we firm up our parking master plan.)   

 

If you have any questions or need additional information please email or contact me at 928-282-1142.  
Look forward to hearing from you soon. 
 
Sincerely, 
Bonnie 
Bonnie Rosen  
ART OF LIVING FOUNDATION 
INTERNATIONAL CENTER FOR MEDITATION & WELL BEING   
National Executive Assistant  
928-282-1142 
Bonnie.Rosen@artofliving.org   

032012 BCC Meeting

96

mailto:[mailto:bonnie.rosen@artofliving.org]
mailto:Bonnie.Rosen@artofliving.org


AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

E.  Boards and Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
During the regular Town Council meeting held on February 14, the Blowing Rock Town Council 
recommended Ms. Brenda Fairbetter to serve as the ETJ member of their Planning Board and 
Mr. Terry Story to serve as the ETJ member of their Board of Adjustment. 
 
[Clerk’s Note:  The Blowing Rock Town Clerk is in the process of requesting applications from 
Ms. Fairbetter and Mr. Story.  If the applications are not received by the meeting time, the Board 
may choose to table appointments until the next meeting scheduled for April 3, 2012.] 
 
At their February 2012 meeting, the AppalCART Advisory Board recommended the attached 
slate of officers be officially appointed/reappointed to their Board:  Mr. Jerry Moretz (at-large 
member); Mr. Greg Lovins (ASU representative); Ms. Angie Boitnotte (at-large member); Mr. 
David Blust (Board of Commissioners representative); Mr. Donald Ray (user representative); 
Mr. Barry Sauls (ASU representative); Mr. Andy Ball (Town of Boone representative); and Ms. 
Jeannine Taylor (Human Service Agency representative). 
 
The above are second readings; therefore, action may be taken if so desired. 
 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

97



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Anita.Fogle
Sent: Wednesday, February 22, 2012 10:26 AM
To: 'Sharon Greene'
Subject: RE: Recommendations

Thanks Sharon! 
 
I will place these recommendations on the agenda for our next meeting.  We just had a meeting last night, so our next one is 
March 6th.  Our Board traditionally  holds two readings prior to voting on Boards & Commissions appointments, so that may 
occur at their 2nd meeting in March, which will be the 20th.  I will let you know as soon as action is taken. 
 
I hope you are having a great week! 
 
Thanks, 
Anita 
 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
Watauga County 
814 West King Street, Suite 205 
Boone, North Carolina  28607 
828.265.8000 Phone 
828.264.3230 Fax 
Anita.Fogle@watgov.org 
www.WataugaCounty.org  
 

From: Sharon Greene [mailto:brtownclerk@bellsouth.net]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 21, 2012 5:18 PM 
To: anita.fogle@ncmail.net 
Subject: Recommendations 
 
 
Hi Anita, 
 
I’m not sure who I need to let know, but… the following people were recommended to serve at the ETJ members of our Planning 
Board and Board of Adjustment during the regular Town Council meeting held on February 14, 2012.  Brenda Fairbetter 
was  recommended to serve at the ETJ member of the Planning Board and Terry Story was recommended to serve on the Board 
of Adjustment.  If you need further information, please let me know. 
 
Thanks 
Sharon 

032012 BCC Meeting

98



Revised Feb 2012 
 

AppalCART Board Members 
 

 
Jerry Moretz, Chair      At Large Rep   began 07/98   began as Chair 1/00, relected as 
Chair 2/20/12 
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
POB 1363 
Boone, NC  28607 
Home = 264-4612   cell  828.964-2572  nancynjerry@charter.net  
*********************************************************************** 
Greg Lovins, Vice Chair      ASU Rep    sworn in 8/28/0, relected as ViceChair 2/20/12 
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
ASU Vice Chancellor for Business Affairs 
Dougherty Administration Building            
Boone, NC  28608             --------------------------828.773.7930 cell 
262-2030   262-6433 Diane’s phone secretary   262-6472  lovinsgm@appstate.edu    
************************************************************************ 
Angie Boitnotte   At Large Rep           sworn in  8/30/04  
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
Project on Aging 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite A 
Boone, NC  28607 
265-8092 phone  264-2060 fax Angie.Boitnotte@watgov.org   
 
************************************************************************ 
David Blust   County Commissioner      Sworn in Jan 19, 2012 
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
8142 Hwy 105 South                                  sworn in at AppalCART  ? 
Boone, NC 28607 
(H) 828-773-0171                                          davidblust@gmail.com  
 
 
 
 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

99

mailto:nancynjerry@charter.net
mailto:lovinsgm@appstate.edu
mailto:Angie.Boitnotte@watgov.org
mailto:davidblust@gmail.com


**********************************************************************  
Donald Ray    User Rep            began 4/01  
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
ASU student 
309 Meadow Hill Dr  Apt 25 
Boone, NC  28607 
264-7603 home  268-6610 work            donaldray10@netzero.net   e-mail 
************************************************************************ 
 
Barry Sauls  ASU Rep  sworn in 1/7/99   
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
ASU Parking and Traffic Director 
POB 32124 
Boone, NC  28608--------------------------------828.773.6177 cell 
262-2878 and 262-2518        262-2649 fax  saulsbd@appstate.edu   e-mail 
************************************************************************* 
Andy Ball – Boone Town Council Rep     sworn in – Jan 19, 2012   
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
Boone Town Council 
550 Queen St  
Boone, NC  28607 
828-406-2408   andy.ball@townofboone.net 
************************************************************************ 
Jeannine Taylor     Human Agency Rep     began 1/06   
expires when the County Commissioners unanimously votes to remove 
Social Services - Work First Social Worker 
132 Poplar Grove Connector, Suite C 
Boone, NC  28607 
265-8100   265-7638 fax  jeannine.taylor@watgov.net   
 

032012 BCC Meeting

100

mailto:donaldray10@netzero.net
mailto:saulsbd@appstate.edu
mailto:andy.ball@townofboone.net
mailto:jeannine.taylor@watgov.net


032012 BCC Meeting

101



032012 BCC Meeting

102



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

F.  Announcements 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’ (NCACC) District Meeting is 
scheduled for April 12, 2012, at the Holiday Inn Express in Wilkesboro.  Tentative meeting 
times are 5:30 P.M. to 8:00 P.M.  Should you wish to attend, please notify Anita who will 
confirm your reservation for dinner.  
 
Aaron’s of Boone wishes to host a “Council Night” to allow the Boone Town Council and the 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners to become acquainted with Aaron’s Sales and Lease 
and see first-hand the services they provide to the community.  Tentative dates suggested are:  
April 3rd @ 7:00 P.M., April 4th @ 5:00 P.M., April 13th @ 7:00 P.M., and April 14th @ 7:00 
P.M.  Direction from the Board is requested.  
 
The Appalachian District Health Department invites the Board to attend a pre-event and event on 
Thursday, March 22, 2012, featuring a presentation regarding aerobic exercise and its 
relationship to the brain.  The event is sponsored through the “Communities Putting Prevention 
to Work” grant.  
 
An Incident Command System (ICS) Overview for Executives/Senior Officials training is 
scheduled on March 28, 2012, from 4:00 P.M. to 6:00 P.M. in the Commissioners’ Board Room.  
 
At your last meeting, you selected the date of April 23, 2012, from 12:00 noon to 1:30 P.M. to 
tour the new Humane Society facility which was recently constructed through a partnership with 
the County.  Humane Society staff are not available on that date and have suggested the dates of 
April 27th or 28th to conduct the tour. 
 
Appalachian State would like to invite the Commissioners, School Board members, and Town 
Council members, to campus on May 7, 2012, from 9:00AM to 2:00 PM.  The purpose of the 
meeting would be to provide an update on major activities taking place on campus such as 
construction projects, strategic priorities, state funding and its impact on the campus and major 
initiatives involving the local community.  The day would consist of a tour, lunch, and meeting 
with University officials.  They would like for this to become an annual event. 
 
 
 
  

032012 BCC Meeting

103



032012 BCC Meeting

104



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Aaron's F-1136 <aaronsboone@gmail.com>
Sent: Wednesday, March 07, 2012 9:37 AM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Re: City Council Night

Mrs. Fogle, 
Thank you for the response.   We were thinking about doing the council night at the beginning of April.   
  
Tentative dates that would work for us are:  
April 3rd‐ 7 pm 
April 4th‐ 5 pm 
April 13th‐ 7 pm 
April 14th‐ 7 pm   
  
Let me know if any of these dates work will for the commissioners.   
  
Thank you! 
  
Chad Thomas 

On Mon, Feb 27, 2012 at 10:50 AM, Anita.Fogle <Anita.Fogle@watgov.org> wrote: 

Hi Mr. Thomas, 

  

The Watauga County Board of Commissioners regularly meet on the 1st Tuesday of each month at 8 am and the 3rd Tuesday of 
each month at 5:30 pm; therefore, these times would not work for the Commissioners.  If you want to send a tentative date to 
me first, to see if our Board has any special meetings or work sessions already scheduled for the date you are considering, I will 
be glad to let you know. 

  

We would appreciate it if you can give at least a two week notice, prior to the event, so that we may announce publically at one 
of our regular meetings that our Board members have been invited to attend your function.  I will be glad to let you know if our 
Board members plan to attend, although some of them may wish to RSVP directly to you. 

  

Once you have chosen a date and time for your event, feel free to send invitations for the Watauga County Board of 
Commissioners to my attention.  You are welcome, of course, to also send invitations to the Commissioners individually.  Their 
contact information can be found on our website 
at:  http://www.wataugacounty.org/main/App_Pages/Dept/BOC/members.aspx  

  

Of course, I can only speak for the County.  You will need to contact the Town of Boone to learn of the Town Council’s 
procedures at: 

Kimberly Brown, CMC 

032012 BCC Meeting

105



2

Town Clerk 

Town of Boone 

PO Box 192 

Boone NC 28607 

(828) 268‐6204 

kim.brown@townofboone.net 

  

Please let me know if you need any additional information.  

  

Thank you, 

Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

Watauga County 

814 West King Street, Suite 205 

Boone, North Carolina  28607 

828.265.8000 Phone 

828.264.3230 Fax 

Anita.Fogle@watgov.org 

www.WataugaCounty.org  

  

From: Joe Furman  
Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2012 4:41 PM 
To: Aaron's F-1136 
Cc: Anita.Fogle 
Subject: RE: City Council Night 

  

Chad, 

I am cc‐ing my reply to you to Anita Fogle, Clerk to the County Board of Commissioners. She is who you need to contact for the 
County. Thanks. 

Joe 

  

032012 BCC Meeting

106



3

Joseph A. Furman, AICP 

Director, Watauga County Planning & Inspections and Economic Development 

331 Queen Street, Suite A 

Boone, NC 28607 

(828) 265-8043 

(828) 265-8080 (fax) 

 joe.furman@watgov.org  

  

  

From: Aaron's F-1136 [mailto:aaronsboone@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, February 16, 2012 1:48 PM 
To: Joe Furman; jamespdunn@yahoo.com; f1136@aarons.com 
Subject: City Council Night 

  

Mr. Furman, 

  

Aaron's of Boone would like to host a council night for the council members forThe Town of Boone, NC and Watauga, 
NC.  Many people are unaware of what Aaron's Sales and Lease actually does.  This would be an opportunity for the 
council members to become acquainted with Aaron's Sales and Lease to see first hand the service we provide to the 
community.    

  

The event would be after normal business hours and include a tour of the facility, refreshments, and a question and 
answer session for the council members.   

  

I was wondering what the correct protocol is to proceed in regards to inviting the members to the 
event?  Any assistance would be appreciated. 

  

Thank you 

  

Chad Thomas 

Sales Manger 

032012 BCC Meeting

107



4

Aaron's of Boone 

  

  

 

032012 BCC Meeting

108



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Deron.Geouque
Sent: Monday, February 20, 2012 12:53 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: FW: Dr. John Ratey - Save the Date
Attachments: Dr. John Ratey event_Save the Date.FINAL.PDF; Dr. John Ratey event_Save the Date.FINAL.PDF

Anita: 
 
For tomorrow night’s meeting and the first meeting in March under announcements. 
 
Thank you. 
 
Deron Geouque 
Watauga County Manager 
814 West King Street 
Boone, NC 28607 
(P) 828-265-8000 
(F) 828-264-3230 
Email Deron.Geouque@watgov.org 
 
From: Beth Fornadley [mailto:bethf@apphealth.com]  
Sent: Friday, February 17, 2012 11:39 AM 
To: Deron.Geouque 
Subject: Dr. John Ratey - Save the Date 
 
Good afternoon, Deron, 
Thank you for speaking with me earlier today. Through a grant the Appalachian District Health Department received 
called Communities Putting Prevention to Work which encourages increased physical activity opportunities and 
healthier eating community wide for our three county area, we have invited Dr. John Ratey, Harvard University 
professor, researcher and public speaker to come present to our communities on Thursday, March 22 regarding aerobic 
exercise and its relationship to the brain. Appalachian State University has agreed to endorse this event as his 
presentation will be held at Appalachian State University campus – please see the attached Save the Date for more 
details regarding the event.  
 
I would like to invite Watauga County Commissioners to the Pre Event noted on the attached Save the Date – 
the Pre Event is only open to elected officials, school administration and ASU faculty as food will be provided, 
we could not open this portion of the evening to the entire community. Please encourage all commissioners to 
RSVP to me via email – bethf@apphealth.com  if they would like to attend either the Pre Event or both the Pre 
Event and presentation.  
 
To learn more about Dr. John Ratey, Harvard University professor and researcher, and his work, please visit his 
website: http://www.johnratey.com/newsite/index.html. 
 
On his website, you can access a testimonial video that shares some of his research regarding fitness/exercise programs 
and how they enable the brain to learn– this video in particular shares a story about students in a school with behavior 
issues and how the school administration attempted to use a physical activity approach to the problem – and the 
remarkable academic progress the students made because of it. You can download and view the video directly from 
his website, it is titled ‘Brain Gains’ (you will find it at the top left corner of the main page of the website).  
 

032012 BCC Meeting

109



2

Also on his website, you will see a picture of his book titled  ‘Spark – The Revolutionary New Science of Exercise and 
the Brain’ – his website offers the opportunity to click on the picture of the book and you can ‘take a look inside’ via 
the Amazon.com books feature to read some of the information. I also have a copy of his book that I am more than 
willing to lend to you or anyone interested in reading more than the website offers.  
 
**I have an extra copy of his book and do not mind dropping one by your office for a further look prior to his 
presentation if you are interested.  
 
If you would prefer me to come share this information regarding this remarkable opportunity for our community at 
your next meeting, I am more than willing to do so. Please call me or email with questions you or anyone else may 
have. My cell # is (828) 406-8116 if I am out of the office. 
 
Thank you! 
 
Beth 
 
www.johnratey.com  

Beth Fornadley, Health Promotion Coordinator 
Appalachian District Health Department 
126 Poplar Grove Connector 
Boone, NC 28607 
phone: 828.264.4995 
fax: 828.264.4997 
www.apphealth.com  
  
Appalachian District Health Department 
Health for All: Promote. Prevent. Empower. 
  
Communities Putting Prevention to Work  
Preventing Chronic Disease Through Policy, Systems, and Environmental Change. 
  
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

110



SAVE THE DATE 
Join Appalachian District Health Department,  

the Be Active-Appalachian Partnership  

and the College of Health Sciences of Appalachian State University  

for  

An Evening with Dr. John Ratey 
Learning how the brain  can be transformed with aerobic exercise for Peak Performance 

 

Thursday, March 22, 2012 

          Location: Appalachian State University, specific location TBA 

Pre-Event (meet & greet Dr. Ratey): 4:30-5:15pm; heavy hors d'oeuvres buffet  

Event: 6:00—8:00pm; doors to open at 5:30pm 
     In order to participate in the Pre-Event, you must RSVP by  

Wednesday, March 14 to Beth Fornadley, bethf@apphealth.com                                    
 
 

 

Author and researcher Dr. John Ratey, a Harvard University professor, will share his latest re-

search and offer real life stories about the schools who have chosen his no-cost approach to integrat-

ing regular aerobic exercise into the school environment and its impact on  

student academic performance. 

 
 For more information regarding this event contact Susan Tumbleston, beactive@appstate.edu                                           

     For more information regarding John Ratey: www.johnratey.com 

SAVE THE DATE 
Join Appalachian District Health Department,  

the Be Active-Appalachian Partnership  

and the College of Health Sciences of Appalachian State University  

for  

An Evening with Dr. John Ratey 
Learning how the brain  can be transformed with aerobic exercise for Peak Performance 

 

Thursday, March 22, 2012 

          Location: Appalachian State University, specific location TBA 

Pre-Event (meet & greet Dr. Ratey): 4:30-5:15pm; heavy hors d'oeuvres buffet  

Event: 6:00—8:00pm; doors to open at 5:30pm 
     In order to participate in the Pre-Event, you must RSVP by  

Wednesday, March 14 to Beth Fornadley, bethf@apphealth.com                                    
 
 

 

Author and researcher Dr. John Ratey, a Harvard University professor, will share his latest re-

search and offer real life stories about the schools who have chosen his no-cost approach to integrat-

ing regular aerobic exercise into the school environment and its impact on  

student academic performance. 

 
 For more information regarding this event contact Susan Tumbleston, beactive@appstate.edu                                           

     For more information regarding John Ratey: www.johnratey.com 

032012 BCC Meeting

111



032012 BCC Meeting

112



032012 BCC Meeting

113



AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Time has been reserved to allow citizen comment to address the Board for any area of interest or 
concern. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 12: 

BREAK 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM 13: 

CLOSED SESSION 
 
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) 
 
 

032012 BCC Meeting

114


	Agenda 
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Agenda
	Sheriff's Office Matters
	Award Request for Retiring Officer
	Request for Declaration of Surplus and Sale - K-9 

	Board of Education Request for Lottery Funds
	Soil and Water Conservation District Matters
	Proposed MOU Transferring the Division of Soil and Water Conservation
	Proposed Use of Bill Edmisten Memorial Fund

	Finance Matters
	Budget Amendments
	Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center's Quarterly Financial Report
	Presentation of Smoky Mountain Center's Auditied Fiscal Monitoring Report

	Top 'O Boone Road Maintenance Request
	Public Hearing - CDBG Small Cities Catalyst Program Application
	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters 
	Proposed Proclamation Declaring May 14-19, 2012, as Community Pride Week
	Proposed State Highway Patrol Lease Renewal
	Public Hearing Request to Allow Citizen Comment on Proposed Refinancing for the New High School
	Proposal for Lease of Parking Spaces at the Old High School
	Boards and Commissions
	Announcements




